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Queries and replies for RFP PLD/CPS/LF/UNRWA 
Website/17/2012 (7 pages) 

 
 

1. If after completing requirements gathering on your project and the vendor 
determines a different technology platform other than Drupal would be 
best, are you open to looking at this or is Drupal the one regardless of this? 

 UNRWA has decided to move to an open-source platform after 
extensive consultation both internally and with an external 
consultant. Although the primary motivation of the redevelopment is 
to move to open-source, we have determined that Drupal is our 
preferred option based on a comparison of advantages, including the 
wide developer community offered by Drupal. 

 
2. Should we include pricing for face-to-face meetings and travel, if necessary, 

in our proposal or would the vendor be expected to cover these costs? 

 Travel for face-to-face meetings would be at the cost of the vendor if 
taking place in East Jerusalem (where the Communications 
Headquarters is based). In order to minimize travel costs for the 
vendor, infrequent meetings could be held elsewhere in the West 
Bank or in Jordan – if closer to the vendor. Telephone meetings are 
another possibility, but not as desirable. 

 
3. You indicate that a moderation workflow will be required to allow some 

field offices to create and submit content directly, are there any other 
workflow processes you anticipate may be needed for the new website? 

 The only workflow moderation required is at Communications 
Headquarters in East Jerusalem. From there, traditional approval 
processes can be followed. 

 
4. Does the content on the current website need to be reviewed to determine 

if it is still relevant / applicable or should we assume all content on the 
current website will be included in the new site? 

 Yes. 
i. If content does require review is this a task UNRWA would 

handle or should the vendor include pricing for this option in 
our response? 

1. UNRWA will handle this task. However, vendors are 
invited to submit separate costing to propose 
undertaking this task. UNRWA would oversee this 
process. 

 
5. What type or level of ongoing “technical support” are you looking for?  

 Would the purpose of the support be to facilitate future website 
features/updates or is it more of a support structure for ongoing 
training and questions that may come up? 
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i. An initial training would be required to ensure that several 
staff of the Communications Division are familiar enough with 
the CMS to make basic updates. Vendors are invited to submit 
separate costing for a proposal to provide technical support for 
any problems that occur with the CMS over the year following 
launch. 

 
6. Aside from the field office restricted login, are there any other unique user 

types or roles that will be required for the new website? 

 Currently, a select group of representatives of government donors 
are able to access a password-protected section of our website to 
access internal documents. This section should continue, with 
security suggestions provided by the vendor. 

 Communications Division staff should each have their own unique 
login for the CMS. 

 
7. For confirmation, when you say the new website will need to be 

“compatible” with mobile browsers for smart phones and tablets, does this 
mean it needs to work/render but is not fully optimized for each of these 
devices? 

 Is any mobile optimization or responsive design required for the 
website? 

i. At a minimum, the website must work/render on a mobile 
device. The vendor is encouraged to provide costing on full 
optimisation of the CMS for mobile devices. 

 
8. How do you anticipate the calendar of events for refugees to perform? Is 

this a calendar format or more of a list of events or maybe both? 

 Both, working from the same data. 
 

9. Where will the website videos be hosted? (i.e. YouTube, Vimeo, or hosted 
on the server and within the Drupal CMS?) 

 YouTube. 
 

10. Will the vendor be responsible for creating infographics? If so, how many 
will be required for the website? 

 The vendor is invited to propose the creation of infographics, to 
illustrate statistics about the Agency’s programmes and beneficiaries, 
such as those listed on each of UNRWA’s programme pages: 
http://www.unrwa.org/etemplate.php?id=18 (The vendor may cost 
this separately, subcontract, or separate this request from the 
submission if preferred.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.unrwa.org/etemplate.php?id=18
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11. Approximately how many products and what types of products will be 
available for sale on the website? 

 Until logistical arrangements are made to process payments and 
arrange delivery, the online store should launch by selling services 
that do not require delivery (e.g. the “adoption” of services, 
marketed as goods). Once logistical arrangements can be made, 
actual goods (such as traditional Palestinian embroidery created by 
beneficiaries of our job creation programme) can be sold online. The 
vendor is invited to make suggestions for online store logistics. 

 
12. Do you have a fulfillment system already in place for delivery and 

management of products? If not, should the vendor make a 
recommendation? 

 No system in place. The vendor is invited to make a 
recommendation. 

 
13. Which additional languages beyond Arabic and English are required for basic 

UNRWA information? 

 The remaining official languages of the United Nations: Chinese 
(Mandarin), French, Russian, Spanish. 

 
14. Does UNRWA have a translator available to translate any/all content that is 

required for the website in languages other than English? 

 UNRWA has in-house capacity to translate between English and 
Arabic. For other languages, UNRWA can arrange translation 
internally – but vendors are invited to submit proposals if interested. 

 
15. Will website visitors be able to comment on blog entries? 

 Yes, ideally through a social plug-in such as Facebook to minimise 
abuse. The vendor is invited to make suggestions to facilitate content 
moderation. 

 
16. Please describe the Pilot testing process required for this project.  

 An internal focus group has already been established at UNRWA. Staff 
will pilot test the website with the needs of “priority demographics” 
in mind – assessing the ease of finding information on the website 
already determined as a priority for these demographics. In addition, 
select stakeholders both within and outside of the Agency will be 
asked for input throughout the redevelopment, including the final 
product. 

 
17. Development and other resources for projects are typically not assigned 

until after an order is received. We will provide bios for individuals who can 
fulfill the roles required for your project but these will not necessarily be 
the specific team assigned to your project. Is this sufficient? 

 Yes. 
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18. Will website donations continue to use “WorldPay” or would you prefer the 
vendor to recommend a donation solution? 

 WorldPay is the current system we use, and we are currently 
investigating other options. A priority for UNRWA is the ability to 
provide a user interface in both English and Arabic, along with the 
ability to accept donations in multiple currencies in use throughout 
the West and the Arab world. 

 
19. Would it be possible for the vendors to review any of the other information 

gathered during your stakeholder interviews or have access to analytics data 
for the current website prior to submitting our RFP response? Doing so will 
allow us to make applicable recommendations for your project. 

 Vendors are invited to submit specific questions related to 
stakeholder interviews and analytics data. However, we cannot 
unfortunately share all of this data for confidentiality reasons. 

 
20. Do you have a budget range allocated for this project that you can share 

with vendors? 

 UNRWA does not disclose budget ranges as part of the tendering 
process; we invite vendors to submit competitive bids. 

 

21. Data Migration  

 What is the format of the current website's database?  Can you supply 
the database structure and sample records? 

 It is MySQL. Here is an example on the site: 
http://www.unrwa.org/ecard/ecard.php uses MySQL 
database. 

 Who will be responsible for updating/correcting data that needs 
manual intervention to be migrated correctly?  

 UNRWA’s in-house web editor. 

 What resources if any will UNRWA be able to provide for the purposes 
of data migration? 

 UNRWA can provide the website on external media such as 
CDs to facilitate migration. The current website uses PHP, 
and tools are available to help automate the migration 
process if using the same language on the new website. 

22. Proposal Delivery  

 This bid being presented to companies in both Jordan and the OPt , is 
there an address in Jerusalem that the proposal documents can be 
delivered to?  

http://www.unrwa.org/ecard/ecard.php
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 All documents related to the proposal should be sent to 
Procurement Headquarters in Amman, Jordan, as detailed 
on Page 4 of the RFP. 

 What is the procedure to submit proposal via email?  Page 4 of the 
RFP does not clearly detail email delivery requirements.  

 Please submit proposals to Procurement HQ as detailed on 
Page 4 of the RFP. 

23. Drupal Experience  

 Does the Communications Division in UNRWA have any Drupal 
experience?  If yes please specify. 

 As users, not developers. 

24. Site Structure  

 Please provide the current taxonomy structure of the current website 
(categories, types, tags etc...).  

 User’s reply to this question is delayed, however upon 
receipt it will be forwarded to you immediately.  

 Is there a preliminary template/wireframe available for the new 
website based on the consultations conducted?  If so can this be 
provided?  

 There is no preliminary template or wireframe. We 
anticipate the selected vendor to provide one as part of 
the development process, and invite bidders to propose a 
template/wireframe as part of their application. 

25. Multimedia  

 Will all videos be still be hosting on YouTube as with the current 
website?  

 Yes. 

26. Online Store  

 What type of goods will be sold (gifts, donations, downloads, 
subscriptions etc...)?  

 

 

 

 



 6 

 

 Initially, goods that do not require shipping may be part of 
the online store (e.g. donations marketed as goods). In the 
future, once logistics have been arranged, there is a 
possibility of selling actual goods such as products currently 
being produced by beneficiaries of our job creation 
programme (such as traditional Palestinian embroidery). 

 What payment processors are required?  Does UNRWA already have a 
payment processor?  

 UNRWA currently uses WorldPay to accept online 
donations. UNRWA does not currently use a payment 
processor to accept payments for goods. 

 What shipping providers will be required?  

 Vendors are invited to include suggested shipping providers 
as part of their submission. 

27. Charts  

 Please provide more details on the charting requirements in page 26.  

 This request is based on the charts available through the 
UNHCR’s CMS: 
http://data.unhcr.org/syrianrefugees/regional.php 

 Please provide an initial list of required infographics.  

 Statistics about UNRWA’s programmes are available on 
each of the programme pages: 
http://www.unrwa.org/etemplate.php?id=18 

28. Search  

 The RFP does not mention search requirements?  Please specify if 
any.  

 The UNRWA website currently uses a Google search engine 
integrated into the website, which has worked well. The 
continued use of Google would be the preferred option. 

29. CRM  

 Would UNRWA be interested in an integrated CRM system?  The CRM 
would be tightly integrated with the website and allows for 
newsletters and mailings to be sent and tracked, and 
subscribers/supporters to be managed.  

 UNRWA is currently in the process of integrating WorldPay 
with Salesforce. UNRWA uses EmailNow for e-mail 
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management, but integration of e-mail management is 
expected at a later point. 

 Would UNRWA be interested in an integrated SMS system?  

 We would welcome any additional suggestions, including an 
integrated SMS system (with separate costing). 

 


